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Parish Clerk, John Maltby.

Letters through Lincoln, via Wragby, arrive at 9.30
a.m. Wall Letter Box, at the Rectory, cleared at 4
p.m. week days only. Baumber, 3 miles distant, is
the nearest money order & telegraph office

SOTBY.

LINCOLNSHIRE,

[KELLY’S

The United Parochial gchool at Ranby serves alse for this
parish & that of Market Stainton

Carrier to Horncastle.—John Maltby, sat

Rivington Rev. Theodore M.A.(rector), !Maltby Edward & Frederick, farmers, |Waltel‘ William Henry, jun. farmer,

Rectory Moor farm

Low farm

Dunn Annie (Mrs.) & Son, farmers, ‘Ma.}bby John, cottage farmr. & carrier |Weatherhog John, blacksmith, agri-

Sotby house
Fountain John, farmer

SOUTHORPE, formerly extra-parochial, is now =
parish, near the river Eau, 2 miles south-west from
Northorpe and 2 east from Blyton stations on the main
line of the Grimsby and Cleethorpes section of the Great
Central railway, and 7 north-east from Gainsborough, in
the West Lindsey division of the county, parts of Lindsey,
Corringham wapentake, Gainsborough union, petty ses-
sional division and county court district. The inhabi-
tants use Northorpe church. William Embleton-Fox esq.

Clixby George, farmer

' Walter Wm. Hy. farmer, Manor farm

| Peck Henry, farmer

cultural maker &

shopkeeper

of Northorpe Hall, who is lord of the manor, W. W. Cole

esq. and W. J. Pickin esq. are the landowners. The scil

is clay and loam; subsoil, clay and gravel. The chief
crops are cereals. The area is 467 acres; rateable valus,

£959; the population in 1gor was 43.

Letlters arrive from Lincoln & are delivered from Nor-
thorpe every other day. The nearest money order &
telegraph office is at Blyton, 2 miles distant

The children of this place attend the school at Northorpe

| Pye William, farmer

implement

SOUTHREY, see Bardney.
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SPALDING is a seaport, market and union town and
parish, with a station on the East Lincolnshire branch of
the Great Northern railway, 14 miles south from Boston,
45 south-east from Lincoln, 17 north from Peterborough,
20 east from Stamford, 1o east from Bourne and 93 from
London, and is head of & county court district, in the
Holland division of the county, wapentake and petty ses-
sional division of Elloe, parts of Holland, rural deanery
of West Elloe, and archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln.
Spalding is a member of the port of Boston, and is the
port for Stamford, Market Deeping and Crowland, hav-
ing water communication with the whole county. The
river Welland runs through the town, dividing it into
two portions, the larger of which is on the north bank:
it is navigable fur vessels of 120 tons, by which means a
trade in cval, oil-cake and timber is carried on: the
course of the river, extending in a comparatively straight
line for 2 miles, constitutes the remains of highest
antiquity about Spalding, for the embankments on each
side of the arm of the sea or Wash, beginning from the
Marsh Rails, are undoubtedly the work of the Romans.
The Great Northern railway has branch lines from here
to Peterboro’, Bourne and Stamford, Holbeach and Lynn,
aud also to March, the East Lincolnshire line giving
access to Boston, Louth, Grimsby and Hull. The Great
Eastern and Great Northern joint line hence to Don-
caster, passes through Sleaford, Lincoln and Gains-
borough, giving direct communication between the
Eastern Counties and the north. A branch line of the
Midland and Great Northern joint railways from Bourne
to Spalding, constructed in 1893, connects the existing
lines with the Eastern counties, including the ports of
Lynn and Sutton Bridge, thus opening up direct com-
munication with the Midlands. The High Bridge over
the Welland was rebuilt in 1838; there are five other
bridges, but for foot passengers only.

The town is not incorporated, but was under the con-
trol of a board of Commissioners under the ¢ Spalding
Improvement Act of 1853,” but under the provisions of
the “ Local Government Act, 1894” (56 and 57 Vict. c.
73), it is now governed by an Urban District Council ot
15 members, and divided into five wards. An Act was
passed in the year 1860 for supplying the town with
water, which is conducted in pipes from Bourne; the
works are close to the town, on the road to Pinchbeck;
the capital is [£13,000, raised in shares of /f10 each.
The town is lighted with gas from works the property
of the Urban District Council.

The parish church of 8S. Mary and Nicholas is a
spacious building, originally Early English, and rebuilt
in 1294, but with many alterations in the Decorated and
Perpendicular styles, some later portions being of Post-
Reformation date: the plan is complex and anomalous,
but, in its original arrangement, it consisted of chancel
with south aisle, nave with aisles, transept with eastern
and western aisles, north porch and an embattled Per-
pendicular tower, with pinnacles and spire, attached to
the western bay of the south aisle, and containing a
clock and 8 bells: to this structure a large rectangular
chapel, dedicated to SS. Mary and Thomas 3 Becket, has
been added on the south-east, cccupying a portion of
the eastern aisle of the transept, and was in 1895 thrown

into the body of the church: the eastern portion of the
nave aisles was also doubled and a south porch with
turret erected: the total length is 157 feet, and the
width, at the transept, which corresponds in this respect
to the double aisle of the nave, 92 feeb 6 inches: there
are monuments to the Johnson and other families, and
nearly all the windows are stained, several being memo-
rials : the church was extensively repaired and restored
by the late Sir G. G. Scott R.A. in the year 1865, at a
cost of [£10,000, and further restored in 1886 at a cost
of [goo, including St. Thomas & Becket’s or the Lady
chapel, on the south side, restored by Canon E. Moore
and ‘Theophilus M. S. Johnson esq.: there are 1,200
sittings. 'The register of baptisms and burials dates
from the year 1538; marriages, 1550. The living is a
vicarage, net yearly valua /582, with residence, in the
gift of trustees, and held since 1899 by the Rev. Richard
Bullock M.A. of Oriel College, Oxford, prebendary of
Lincoln and rural dean of West Elloe.

The ecclesiastical parish of St. John the Baptist was
formed December 1, 1874, from the civil parishes of
Spalding and Pinchbeck. The church at Hawthorn
Bank, erected in 1875 by Miss Johnson at a cost of
412,000, from designs by R. J. Withers esq. Adam
street, Adelphi, London, is a building of stone, in the
Gothic style, consisting of chancel, nave, aisles, crypt,
vestry, organ chamber, south porch and a turret con-
taining a clock and 2 bells: there are 450 sittings. The
register dates from the year 1875. The living is a
vicarage, net yearly value (360, with residence, in the
gift of the Bishop of Lincoln, and held since 1897 by the
Rev. Grant William Macdonald M.A. of St. Mary Hall,
Oxford.

The ecclesiastical parish of St. Paul, FULNEY, was
formed Deo. 21, 1877, from the civil parish of Spalding.
The church, together with a vicarage and Sunday schoal,
was erected in 1880, the church at a cost of [16,000,
and the whole at a cost of [40,000, defrayed by Miss
Charington, who also endowed it with £300 a year, £50
being added by the Ecclesiastical Comumissioners. The
church is a building of red brick and Ancaster stone, in
the Early English style, after designs by the late Sir G.
Gilbert Scott R.A. and consists of clerestoried nave,
aisles, vestry, south porch and a western tower with
pinnacles and spire 129 feet high, containing a clock and
8 bells: there are sedilia and piscina: the font is of
Mansfield Woodhouse stone with Purbeck marble shafts,
and the pulpit is of carved oak on a stone base: there
are sittings for 350 persons. The register dates from the
year 188c. The living is a vicarage, gross yearly valua
£350, with residence, in the gift of the Bishop of
Lincoln and the vicar of Spalding jointly, and held since
1878 by the Rev. Richard Guy Ash M.A. of Wadham
College, Oxford, and chaplain of Spalding union.

The church of St. Peter, in the Abbey gardens, is a
building of red brick in the Early English style, erected
in the year 1875-6 at a cost of /£10,000, from designs by
the late Sir G. Gilbert Scott R.A. and consists of
chancel, nave, aisles, vestry, north porch, organ chamber
and a turret containing one bell: the east window is
stained : this church is served from that of SS. Mary
and Nicholas: there are 5oo sittings.
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The Catholic church, dedicated to the Immaculate
Conception and St. Norbert, in Henrietta street, built in
1876 and enlarged in 1879, is a plain edifice of red brick
in the Early English style, consisting of nave and a tur-
ret containing one bell : some of the windows are stained.
In Sept. 1908 a lady chapel in the form of a grotito, a
copy of the famous grotto of Lourdes, and the work of a
Belgian artist, M. Jacques Coomans, was dedicated.

Here is a Friends’ meeting-house, a Congregational
chapel in Pinchbeck road, erected in 1821, seating 5oo
persons, with a branch chapel in Holbeach road, built
in 1841, and having 100 sittings; the Baptist chapel, in
Chapel lane, founded in 1646, has sittings for 650 per-
sons, and has a branch chapel on Spalding Common,
seating 200; there are also Primitive Methodist, Wes-
leyan Methodist, United Methodist and Calvinistic
chapels, and meeting-rooms for the Christadelphians
and the Plymouth Brethren.

The Cemetery, about half a mile from the town, was
formed at a cost of about £4,500, including the purchase
of land and the erection of the two chapels: an addi-
tional piece of land, about 2 acres in extent, was pur-
chased in 1876, and the whole is now under the control
of the Urban District Council.

The Corn Exchange, erected in 1855-6 by the former
Improvement Commissioners at a cost of nearly /3,000,
is a building in the Elizabethan style, with an illuminated
clock: the exchange-room, which is 83 feet long and 43
broad, is fitted with stands for corn merchants, and is
provided with a permanent proscenium for theatrical
and other entertainments: close to the Exchange is the
Butter Market, opened in 1857, and since much enlarged
and improved.

The Sessions House, in the Sheep Market, was erected
in the year 1842, at a cost of £6,000: quarter and petty
sessions are held here for the parts of Holland.

The Masonic Hall is in Pinchbeck street ;
meets once & month.

Ayscoughfee Hall, on the banks of the Welland, is a
picturesque and ancient mansion; it has, with its gar-
dens, been acquired by the Urban District Council for
the use of the public for ever.

The Drill Hall for the F Company 4th Territorial
Force Battalion of the Lincolnshire Regiment, in the
Sheep market, was erected in 1890, and is a red brick
building with stone facings, standing on ground 125 by
48 feet: it consists of a large hall about 75 by 45 feet,
with a fixed stage, armoury, orderly and other rooms;
the hall is also let for concerts, dramatic and other
entertainments, for which it is well adapted.

The town carries on a trade in corn, meal, flour,
timber and cake. There are several steam and wind
mills for grinding corn, and the cattle food and spice
works of Messrs. Osmond and Son. Large guantities of
fruit and vegetables are also sent over the Great
Northern and Great Eastern railways to the London
markets and manufacturing districts.

The Town Commissioners purchased the market tolls,
formerly belonging to the lord of the manor, for the
sum of about [4,000; the market place was paved with
granite in 1876, and the sheep market with asphalte,
and permanent iron pens erected.

The market day is Tuesday for corn, cattle. sheep,
fowls, vegetables and dairy produce; and on Saturday,
vegetables and fruits are sold.

PFive yearly fairs are held for cattle and merchandise,
viz., the first Tuesday after Lincoln fair (April), last
Tuesdays in June and August, and September 25th, and
on the Friday before the London great Christmas
market; also a statute fair for hiring servants in May.

In Hall place is a fountain, the gift of the late Miss
M. A. Johnson.

The Police Station was erected in 1858, at a cost of
£1,400.

There are four banks, and also a savings bank.

There are also two hotels.

The “ Lincolnshire, Boston and Spalding Free Press”
is published every Tuesday by the Spalding Free Press
Printing and Publishing Co. Limited ; and the ¢ Spalding
Guardian ” every Saturday, by R. Winfrey.

The Club House, in Broad street, belongs to the
Spalding Club Company Limited, which has a capital
of £2,500, in 250 shares of £10 each; it was opened in
August, 1875, and contains reading, smoking and billiard
rooms; there are about r4o members.

The Christian Association and Literary Institute, in
Spring gardens, opened in the year 1875, is a build-
ing of red brick in the French Gothic style. and contains
lecture hall, reading and class rooms, with a library of
1,600 volumes, and a residence for the caretaker.

The Spalding Mechanics’ Institute, in Red Lion street,
established in 1845, contains reading rooms and a library
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of nearly 1,800 books; during the year 1888 the library
was remodelled and the sum of /50 expended on new
books.

The Spalding Gentlemen’s Society is an antiquarian
and literary society, founded by Maurice Johnson esq.
then residing at Ayscoughfee Hall, in this town, a man
of considerable note and one of the founders and the first
librarian of the Society of Antiquaries of London. The
Spalding society was founded in 1710, seven years before
the formation of the larger society. Among its earliess
members were Sir Isaac Newton, Dr. William Stukeley,
the well-known antiquary, George Vertue, engraver to
the Society of Antiquaries and one of the first mem-
bers of the Academy of Painting, Sir Hans Sloane,
president of the Royal Society, Collins, the landscape
painter, Browne Willis, the antiquary, the poets Pope,
Gray and Addison, and Boger and Samuel Gale. The
society has acquired a valuable collection of ancient
books, manuscripts and engravings, as well as a small
museum : it has been reorganized, and now numbers
over 70 members; members meet monthly in the
board room of the Johnson Hospital, when papers are
read on antiquarian and literary subjects, and articles
of great interest are often exhibited.

Gamlyn’s Almshouses, for 34 men and women, founded
by Sir John Gamlyn in the year 1650, were rebuilt in
1844 in the Gothic style: each inmate receives 3s. 6d.
weekly and one ton of coals yearly. The almshouses
founded by William Willesby have been taken down,
and a sum of £6o is now equally divided amongst six
persons, male or female, annually. Mrs. E. Sparke’s
almshouses for six widows were rebuilt in 181a2; each
inmate receives 3s. 6d. weekly. The charities for dis-
tribution amount to about /200 yearly.

The Johnson Hospital, built in 1881, and partially en-
dowed from bequests of the late Misses E. A. and M.
A. Johnson (from whom the hospital takes its name),
at a cost of [4,000, is a plain building of red brick,
faced with Bath stone, in the Domestic Gothic style, and
contains six wards, three for males and three for
females, and has 21 beds.

The Spalding Infirmary and Dispensary, established in
1839, has rooms in the Johnson Hospital; the number
of patients attended for the year ending March, 1900,
was about 350.

Spalding, as a town, existed before Crowland, and its
central position in the Mercian kingdom led to the
erection of a castle, the site of which was at the mnorth
entrance to the town on the east side; some vestiges of
the moat may be distinguished, and a fetter-lock pre-
served on the spot is believed to have been the veritable
lock of the castle of Ivo Taillebois, Earl of Angers, and
nephew of the Gonqueror, who resided here, and, dying
about rir4, was buried in the conventual church.

There are some 1s5th century remains of the out-
buildings of the ancient Benedictine priory of 8S. Mary
and Nicholas, founded in 1051 by Thorold de Bokenhale,
lieutenant of his father, the Duke of Mercia; these are
now incorporated into dwelling hounses, and consist of &
turret staircase, the dormitory, an octagonal turret or
prison and portions of the moat: at its dissolution there
were 2o monks, and revenues estimated at £767.

“Fulney Farm house,” 14 miles south-east from the
town, is a very ancient structure, erected in ro8o, and is
supposed to have been the dairy farm of the monastery;
it is built with a mixture of bricks, stone and concrete,
its walls being 3 feet thick, and in capital preserva-
tion; the mpper part of the house is supported on &
groined lower story, and was at one time approached by
a stone staircase outside the building on the south side;
there are still traces of the moat and fishpond, by which
the building was surrounded; it is at present occupied
by a farm bailiff.

Fulney House, 1% miles east of the town, is a hand-
some brick mansion, surrounded by extensive pleasure
grounds. .

John Swan esq. and Joe George Calthrop esq. are
lords of Spalding manor; Richard Buckworth esq. of
Cockley Cley, Norfolk, is lord of the manor of Spalding
Crowland; E. V. H. Blyton esq. steward. The land is
mostly held by small freeholders.

The land produces large quantities of wheat, oats and
market garden produce, also roots, beans and peas;
there is also a fair proportion of fine grazing land.
The area is 10,701 acres of land, 51 of water, 35 of tidal
water and 24 of foreshore; rateable value, [47.649;
the population in 1g9ox was 9,385, including ¢ officers
and Qo inmates in the workhouse and 13 in the Johnson
Hospital.

The population of the Urban District wards in 1gor
was :—Central, 1,803 ; East, 1,889; North, 1,758 ; South,
1,867 ; West, 2,068.
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The population of the ecclesiastical parishes in 1gor
was :—Central, 1,803; East, 1,88¢9; North, 1,758 ; South,
St. John the Baptist, 2,112; St. Paul, 55I.

WYKEHAM is an estate in Spalding parish, 3 miles
morth-east from the parish church, and adjoins the
parish of Weston St. Mary: here are the remains of a
domestic chapel built by Clement Hatfield, prior of
Spalding, and finished in 1311 and dedicated to St.
Nicholas; it is an exact parallelogram of ashlar, 43 by 22
feet, disposed in three bays, marked by deeply project-
ing buttresses: the east window is Perpendicular, but
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the rest are either imperfect or bricked up; a lychno-
scope and sedilia are also covered in & simiiar way, and
on either side of the east window are two elegant
niches: at the south-west corner is an excellent stone
spiral staircase, which communicated with the domestic
buildings. Wykeham chapel is a sinecure donative
benefice, endowed with 124 acres of glebe, net yearly
value [£15, in the gift of the governors of Spalding
Grammar School, and is at present (1gog) vacant. The
trustees of the late Robert Everard esq. are the owners
of the Wykeham estate.

OFFICIAL ESTABLISHMENTS, LOCAL INSTITUTIONS &c.

Post, M. O. & T. O. & Telephonic Express Delivery
Office.—William Robert Owen, postmaster & dis-
tributor of stamps, Sheep market :

Money order & savings bank business transacted from
8 a.m. till 8 p.m .

The Telegraph Office is open from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m. &
on sundays from 8 to 10 a.m

There is a telegraph office, for delivery on the station
premises only, open from 7 a.m. mon. to midnight sat

Letters for London & all parts, box closes at 9.35 p.m.;
with extra stamp, can be posted in late box till g.45
p.m. & 10.13 p.m. in mail train

#or London & all parts, box closes at 8 & 10.30 a.m. &
12.20 & 2 pm. (EC & WC only), letters being de-
livered in London the same evening

For Bostan (day mail), box closes at 11 a.m

¥or Holbeach (day mail), box closes at 11 a.m

¥or the North and the Midland counties, box closes at
4.50 p.m

Box closes on sunday at 8.30 p.m. & with additional
halfpenny starmp till 8.40 p.m. & 9.5 p.m. in mail
train

Letters are delivered at 7 & 8.10 a.m. & 12.10 & 6 p.m. ;
on sundays one delivery only, at 7 a.m

Parcel Post.—Dispatches, showing latest times at which
parcels can be received for each mail: To all parts,
10.30 a.m. 12 noon & 4.45, 6.30 & 9 p.m.; Boston &
Holbeach, 11 am. TFive dispatches each day

2 p.m. dispatch to Peterborough & London; letters by
this dispatch for following places delivered same
day:—Lynn, Bourne, Oundle, Holbeach, Wisbech,
Grantham, Stamford, Market Deeping, Boston, March,
Lincoln, Sleaford. Day mail to Donington, Gosberton,
Moulton & Pinchbeck, box closes 12.45 p-m

Town Sub-Post & M. 0. Offices:—
ommercial road.—Gilbert Lanham, sub-postmaster.
Letters dispatched at 4.50, 9-25 & 11.35 a.m. & 1.15,
4.10, 5.10, 7.5 & 8.55 p.m.; sundays, 7.5 p.m

Hawthorne bank.—Mrs. E. Stevenson, sub-postmistress.
Letters dispatched at g9.15 a.m. & 12.30, 4.15, 7 & 9
p.m.; sundays, 7.15 p.m

Winsover road.—Thomas Richards, sub-postmaster.
Letters dispatched at 5.10, g.40 & 11.35 a.m. & 12.50,
4.30, 5.30, 7-25 & Q.10 p.m.; sundays, 7.30 p.m

Post Office, Spalding Common.—William Smith Rey-
nolds, sub-postmaster. Delivery, 7 am. & 12.30
p.m.; dispatch, 8.30 a.m. & 1.20 & 6.20 p.m. Little
London is the nearest money order office & Spalding
the nearest telegraph office

Post & M. O. Office, Little London.—George Crampton,
sub-postmaster. Delivery, 6.30 a.m. & 12 noon; no
sunday delivery; dispatch, 8.45 a.m. & 1.50, 4.10,
6.45 & 8.55 p.m.; sundays, 7.10 p.m

«COUNTY MAGISTRATES FOR THE ELLOE. PETTY
SESSIONAL DIVISION.

Howard Fitzalan esq. Holyrood ho. Spalding, chairman

Lawrance Sir Jn. Compton D.L. 7 Onslow sq.LondonSW

Bateman Jas. Robt. esq. Nene lo.Sutton Bridge,Wisbech

Carter Lawrence esq. Wickden, Stony Stratford

Clark Henry esq. Cley hall, Spalding

England George Frederick esq

Everard Harry Stirling Crawfurd esq. Rathmore, St.
Andrew’s, Fife, N.B

Howard George Frederick Curtois esq. London road,
Long Sutton, Wisbech

Massey George esq. 27 London road, Spalding

Merry Robert esq. Littleport, Fleet, Holbeach

Mills William Henry esq. Branksome, Dorset

Morrison Hector Mackay esq. Argus house, Spalding

Riddington Myhill esq. The Willows, Borough Fen,
Peterborough

Skelton George esq. 29 Buckingham mansions, West
End lane, Hampstead, London N'W

Stiles Arthur Jalland esq. 18 London road, Spalding

Stiles Henry Tournay M.D. 18 Upper Welland terrace,
London road, Spalding

Thompson Wm. Jas. esq. Postland, Crowland,Peterboro’

Welby Edward Montague Earle esq. Norton house,
Norton, Sheflield

Welby-Everard Edward Everard Earle esq. Gosberton
house, Gosberton, Spalding

West William Henry esq. Somerset house, Holbeach
Marsh, Holbeach

The Chairmen, for the time being, of the Spalding,
Holbeach, Long Sutton & Sutton Bridge Urban &
Crowland, Spalding & Holbeach Rural District Coun-
cils, are ex-officio magistrates; Clerk to the Magis-
trates, Harold Stanley Maples, Sessions ho. Spalding

Petty Sessions are held at the Sessions house every
first & third tuesday at 11 a.m

Places in the petty sessional division are:— Cowbit,
Crowland, Deeping St.' Nicholas, Fleet, Gedney, Ged-
ney Hill, Holbeach, Lutton, otherwise Sutton St.
Nicholas, Moulton, Pinchbeck, Spalding,Sutton Bridge,
Sutton St. Edmund, Sutton St. James, Long Sutton,
Little Sutton, Tydd S8t. Mary, Weston St. Mary,
Whaplode, Whaplode Drove, Central Wingland

TRBAN DISTRICT COUNCIL.
Offices, Corn Exchange.
Meeting day, first wednesday in the month at 3 p.m.

Members.
Chairman, George Sly.
Vice-Chairman, George Massey J.P.

Central Ward.
Retire April |

Retire April
Harry Lacey Enderby 1g10

| George Massey J.P ... 1912

George Jarvis ............ 1911

North Ward.
John Thomas Atton ... 1910 | Arthur Green ......... e 1912
George Y¥rancis Birch... 1911

South Ward.

Edward William Gooch 1910 | William Fletcher ...... 1912

George Sly ...cccceean. IQII

East Ward.
Fred Sly ............cc.... 1910 | Thomas O. Mawby...... 1912
Martin Taylor............ IgTI

West Ward.
Watson Marshall ...... 1910 | John Thomas Brown ... 1912
John Thomas White ... 1911

Officers.

Clerk, Henry Herbert Harvey, Double street

Deputy Clerk, Charles L. Harvey, Double street

Treasurer, David Munro, National Provincial Bank of
England, Market place

Medical Officer of Health, Gilbert Lacy Barritt M.R.C.S.
Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond. 15 High street

Surveyor & Superintendent of Works & Building Inspee-
tor, John Bailey, Ayscoughfee hall, Spalding

Collector, Walter B. Crampton, Double street

Manager of Gas Works, Harry R. Wimhurst, Albion st

Markets & Sanitary Inspector,A. L. Seymour,Sheep mkt

Superintendent of Fire Brigade, Jn.Bailey,Matmore gate

SPALDING RURAL DISTRICT COUNCIL.
Meets at Union house, monthly.

Chairman, John Quzman, Gosberton

Clerk, Harold Stanley Maples, 238, New road, Spalding

Treasurer, Wm. Lane Claypon, Capital & Counties Bank

Medical Officer of Health, Samuel Herbert Perry
M.R.C.S.Eng., LR.C.P.Lond. 4 Church st. Spalding

Highway Surveyors, Thomas Aitken, Spalding; W. T.
Smith, Pinchbeck; George A. Thistleton, Surfleet &
J. Richman, Donington

Sanitary Inspector, William Robert Barwis, 7 Prospect

place, Spalding



DIRECTORY. |
THE TOWN HUSBANDS.

These are trustees of certain charities formed soon
after the dissolution of the monasteries in the 16th cen-
tury : they hold meetings at the Corn exchange.

The following are the gentlemen elect:—

W. Newton Benjamin Fountain
J. H. Burg Rev. R. G. Ash M.A
George F. Birch John Henry Bunting
Marten Perry M.D John T. Atton

H. H. Harvey J. T. White

Harry L. Enderby Henry Clark

Rev. Grant W. Macdonald H. 8. Maples

M.A Frederick Sly
George P. Kingston Rev. R. Bullock M.A
George Hall A. K. Maples

Fitzalan Howard
John Wilson Gleed
William H. Mills

Rev. S. Yates
H. T. Stiles M.D

W. F. Howard, clerk

PUBLIC ESTABLISHMENTS.

Corn Exchange, Market place, Alfred Butler, keeper

Cemetery, Pinchbeck road, Elvan Brown, keeper &
receiver of fees

County Court, held at the Sessions house, His Honor

Sir George Sherston Baker bart. judge; William
Hubbard Clements, registrar & high bailiff. The
court is generally held first wednésday in every

month; the following places are within its jurisdic-
tion :—Cowbit, Crowland, Deeping St. Nicholas,
Donington, Gosberton, Moulton, Pinchbeck, Quadring,
Spalding, Surfleet, Weston

Certified Bailiffs under the ‘ Law of Distress Amend-
ment Act, 1888,” George Peter Kingston, 24 Hall
place, Spalding; George Hall, New road, Spalding;
John Cox, Crowland; Cecil F. Barrell, Grantham;
Frank Lumby, Donington; John Woodroof, Spalding ;
Walter B. Crampton, Double street, Spalding

For bankruptcy purposes this court is included in that
of Peterborough ; Howard William Cox, 5 Petty Cury,
Cambridge, official receiver

County Police Station, Sheep market, Joseph Burton,
supt. ; James Cook, inspector, & 6 constables

Fire Engines, Station street; John Bailey, superinten-
dent, Matmore gate

Infirmary & Dispensary, Johnson hospital, Priory road,
P. Galloway M.B., C.M. Marten Perry M.D. Gilbert
Lacy Barritt M.R.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond., J. H.
Power M.R.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond. & Samuel Herbt.
Perry M.B.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P. surgeons

Inland Revenune Office, St. Thomas’s road, Robert
Henry Hamilton, officer & inspector of corn returns

Johnson Hospital, Priory road, Henry Tournay Stiles
M.D.St.And. hon. physician; P. Galloway M.B., C.M.
Aberd. Marten Perry M.D.St.And., M.R.C.S8.Eng. &
S. H. Perry M.R.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond. physicians;
Gilbert Lacy Barritt M.R.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond. &
J. H. Power M.R.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond. surgeons;
Miss J. Cooke, matron; Ashley K. Maples, hon. sec.;
William Fitzalan Howard, clerk

Masonie Hall, Pinchbeck sbreet

Mechanics’ Institute, Red Lion street, Charles Delahoy,
librarian

Sessions House, Sheep market, Richard Hulton Plaister,
keeper

Temperance Hall, Crescent, Fred Walden, sec

TERRITORTAL FORCE.
4th Battalion Lincolnshire Regiment (half of F Co.),
Orderly room, Drill hall, Sheep market, Capt. G. J.
Barrell; Color-Sergt. F. Shepherd, drill instructor

SPALDING TUNION.

Board day, alternate mondays, at the Workhouse, at
11.30 8.m.

8palding union comprises the ten parishes of Cowbit,
Deeping St. Nicholas, Donington, Gosberton, Moulton,
Pinchbeck, Quadring, Spalding, Surfleet & Weston.
The population of the union in 1901 was 21,782 ; area,
79,685 acres; rateable value at Michaelmas, 1909,
£173,220

Chairman of the Board of Guardians, Rev. John Chat-
win Jones M.A. Charnwood, Spalding

Clerk to the Guardians & Assessment Committee, Harold
Stanley Maples, 23a, New road, Spalding

Treasurer, William Lane Claypon, banker, Spalding
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Collectors of Poor Rates:—Spalding, Richard Longstaff,
Sheep market, Spalding; Deeping St. Nicholas, Jas.
William Wilkinson, Deeping St. Nicholas; Pinchbeck,
William Thomas Smith, Pinchbeck; Moulton, John
Harber Diggle, Moulton; Surfleet, G. A. Thistleton,
Surfleet; Gosberton, Percy M. Doubleday, Gosber-
ton ; Cowbit, John Henry Boon, Cowbit; Donington,
Williamnm H. Cooper, Donington; Weston, Paul Tolson,
Weston

Relieving Officer, Gosberton district, George Handford,
Gosberton; Spalding district, Edmund Fisher, Cross
street, Spalding

Vaccination Officers, George Handford,
Edmund Fisher, Cross street, Spalding

Medical Officers, Deeping St. Nicholas district, John
Hugh Power M.R.C.S.Eng. 38 London road, Spald-
ing; William Edwin Stanton B.A., L.S.A. Market
Deeping & Henry Thomas Benson L.R.C.P.Lond.
Market Deeping; Donington district, Edward William
Jollye M.R.C.S.Eng. Donington; Gosberton district,
Benjamin Sweeten M.B., C.M.Edin., D.P.H.Dub.
Gosberton; Moulton district, Bertram Mavhew Bone
M.B., C.M.Edin., F.R.C.S.Edin. The Goddards, Moul-
ton; Pinchbeck district, Harold Macdonald Hewer
M.B., C.M.Edin. Pinchbeck; East Spalding district,
Gilbert Lacy Barritt M.R.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond. 15
High street, Spalding; West Spalding district, John
Hugh Power M.R.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond. 38 Lon-
don road, Spalding

Public Vaccinators, Spalding district, John Hugh Power
M.R.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond. 38 London road,
Spalding; other districts, same as Medical Officers

The Workhouse, a large structure of red brick, about
half a mile from the town, on the road to Pinchbeck,
was erected in 1835, & will hold 403 inmates; the
schools & infirmary are separate from the main building :
the children now attend the elementary school: Rev.
Richard Guy Ash M.A. chaplain; Gilbert Lacy Barritt,
medical officer; George Charlesworth Bimrose, master ;
Mrs. Bimrose, matron

Superintendent Registrar, Harold Stanley Maples, 23a,
New rd.; deputy, Benjamin Fountain, St. Thomas’ rd

Registrars of Births & Deaths, Deeping St. Nicholas sub-
district, W. J. Green, Deeping St. Nicholas; Doning-
ton sub-district, Edward William Jollye, Donington};
deputy, Richard Walter Peach, Donington; Gosber-
ton sub-district, William Russell, Gosberton; Moulton
sub-district, Edmund Platt, Moulton; Pinchbeck sub-
district, Amy Elizabeth Turner, Pinchbeck; deputy,
Edith Roberta Turner, Pinchbeck; Spalding sub-dis-
trict, George Goodwin, 10 Market place, Spalding

Registrars of Marriages, Samuel Woolley Peake, Red
house, Spalding; deputy, William J. Crawford, New
road, Spalding; Edward William Jollye, Donington ;
deputy, Richard Walter Peach, Donington

PUBLIC OFFICERS.

Assistant Overseer & Assessor & Collector of Taxes,
Richard Longstaff, Sheep market

Certifying Factory Surgeon, Gilbert Lacy Barritt
M.R.C.S., L.R.C.P.Lond. 15 High street

Clerk to the Court of Sewers for the Division of Holland
Elloe, South Holland Drainage Trustees & the Feoffees
of the Spalding Rectory, Joe George Calthrop, Market
place, Spalding

Clerks & Receivers to the Cowbit &c. Wash Drainage
Trustees, South Holland Embankment Trustees, the
Fourth District Drainage Trustees & the Deeping St.
Nicholag Washes Drainage Board, Calthrop & Leopold
Harvey, Market place

Clerks to the Glen Bank Trustees, Calthrop & Leopold
Harvey, Market place; Receiver, Leopold Charles
Harvey, Market place

Clerk to the Governors of Spalding Grammar Schoal,
Leopold Charles Harvey, Market place

Clerk to the Land & Property Tax Commissioners &
Moulton Salt Marsh Drainage Trustees, Leopold Chas.
Harvey, Market place

Clerk to the Local Pension Sub-Committee, Parts of
Holland, No. 4 District, Charles Lewis Harvey, 8
Double street

Clerks to the River Welland Outfall Trustees & Clerks
to Deeping Fen Trustees & the Spalding & Pinchbeck
Drainage Trustees, Calthrop & Leopold Harvey, Mar-
ket place

Collector of Market Tolls, Arthur L. Seymour, Sheep
market

Coroner for Spalding & Part of Holland District, Gilbert
Lacy Barritt M.R.C.S., L. R.C.P.Lond. 15 High st.;
Deputy Coroner, Leopold Charles Harvey, Market pl
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Harbour Master, John Turner, Angel inn, Double street

Superintendent of Police, Joseph Burton, Sheep market

Inspector of Police, James Cook, Sheep market

Inspector of Weights & Measures to the Administrative
County Council for the Parts of Holland, William
Grassam, 1 Double. street

Receiver of the South Holland General Works & Adven-
turers & Welland Drainage Taxes, Henry Herbert
Harvey, 8 Double street

Receiver of Spalding & Pinchbeck Drainage Rates, Harold
Stanley Maples, 23a, New road

Superintendent of Deeping Fen Drainage, Harry Bain,

«t+ King’s road

Superintendent of the South Holland Drainage, John
Woodroof, 23 Albert street -

Superintendent of the River Welland Outfall Drainage,
John Kirkby; Welland office, Fosdyke

Superintendent to the River Glen Bank Trustees, Harry
Bain, King’s road

-Town Crier, James Barton, Double street

Veterinary Inspectors under the “Contagious Diseases
(Animals) Act ” to Holland County Council, Frederick
Henry Reeks M.R.C.V.S. & H. C. Reeks F.R.C.V.S.
24 Red Lion street

SPALDING.

PLACES OF WORSHIP, with times of services.

SS. Mary & Nicholas Church, Church street, Rev.
Richard Bullock M.A. prebendary of Lincoln, vicar;
Rev. Hayter Montague Harvie M.A. curate; 8 & 10.30
am. & 3 & 6.30 p.m.; daily, 10 a.m. & 5.30 p.m.;
fri. 7.30 p.m

St. John the Baptist Church, Hawthorn bank, Rev.
Grant W. Macdonald M.A. vicar; 8 & 11 a.m. & 6.30
p.m.; daily, 8 a.m. & 4.30 p.m

St. Peter’s .Church, Abbey grounds, served from SS.
Mary & Nicholas; 10.30 a.m. & 6.30 p.m.; 1st & 3rd
sundays at 7.30 a.m

St. Paul’s, Fulney, Rev. ‘Richard Guy Ash M.A. vicar;
1r am. & 6.30 p.m

Immaculate Conception & St. Norbert Catholic Church,
Henrietta street, Bev. Clement Tyck C.R.P. (prior),
Rev. Frederick Van Santen (C.R.P. Rev. Stephen
Mulligan C.R.P. & Rev. Gilbert McGarrity C.R.P.
priests; mass, 10.30 a.m.; evening service, 6.30
p-m. sun.; daily mass, 7, 7.30 & 8 a.m

Friends’ Meeting House, Double street; 10.30 a.m. & 3
p.m.; thurs. 1r a.m

Baptist, Chapel lane, Rev. John Chatwin Jones M.A.;
10.30 a.m. & 6.30 p.m.; wed. 7.15 p.m

Baptist, Spalding Common; 6.30 p.m

Calvinist, Love lane; 10.30 a.m. & 6.30 p.m

Christadelphian, Eureka hall, New road; 10.30 a.m. &
6.30 p.m

Congregational, Pinchbeck street, Rev. Samuel Yates;
10.30 a.m. & 6.30 p.m.; wed. 7.30 p.m

Congregational, Holbeach road, Rev. Samuel ¥Yates;
6.30 p.m

Plymouth Brethren,
6.30 p.m

Spring gardens; 10.45 am. &

Primitive Methodist, St. Thomas’s road ; 10.30 Rev.
a.m, & 6.30 p.m. ; wed. 7.30 p.m - Wm. G.
Primitive Methodist, Little London;2.30 &6 p.m ) Softley

United Methodist Church, Crescent, Rev. John T. Bils-
borrow & Rev. T. Thompson (Gosberton); 10.30 a.m.
& 6.30 pm.; wed. 7 pm

Wesleyan Methodist, Broad street, Rev. Edward Charles-
worth & Rev. Arthur James Strongmanj 10.30 a.m.
& 6.30 p.m.; thurs. 7 p.m

SCHOOLS.

The Free Grammar School, Priory road, founded in 1588
by Sir John Gamlyn, was removed to its present site
in 1881 ; the buildings, constructed of red brick, faced
with Ancaster stone, in the Queen Anne style, surround
a courtyard, the master’s house occupying the south &
west fronts; the school has a yearly endowment ot
£280, out of which the governors have to provide for
the management of the Willesby School; /30 a year is
given for scholarships from the Willesby School & £30
for scholarships at all the Elementary schools, all these
being tenable ' at. the Grammar school; a large
chemistry laboratory, costing about f8co & an art
room have been recently added; the school is now a
Secondary School under the Board of Education, & is
controlled by 14 governors; Fitzalan Howard esq. J.P.
chairman; there are now (19og) about 70 boys & 45
girls in the school & classes; ,
head master; E. V. Spicer (art), E. W. Bell F.C.S,,
H. D. G.. Woodhall, L., T. Driver & F. H. Adames,
assistant masters; Miss M. E. Madden B.A. Miss Ash
& Miss E. Ash, mistresses

LINCOLNSHIRE.
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ELEMENTARY & HIGHER EDUCATION IN THE
COUNTY OF HOLLAND,
The Committee consists of 28 members.
Chairman (Elementary), John Millington Simpson, Skir-
beck road, Boston
Chairman (Higher Education),
Elms, Spalding
Secretary, A. A. Crabtree, Spalding
Accountant, E. T. Waring
Office, Sessions house

John W. Gleed, The

Council Schools. )
The Committee of Management consists of six members.

Chairman, George Hall

Clerk, Leopold C. Harvey, Market place

The Oommittee meet at the Central school every last

thursday in the month ab 10 a.m.

Central, Westlode street, erected in 1879, for 400
children, & enlarged in 18go-g2, will now hold 818
children; average attendance, 200 boys, 261 girls &
171 infants; George Edward Church, master; Miss
Henrietta Pulford, mistress; Miss Amy Robinson,
infants’ mistress

Marsh, Spalding Marsh (mixed); average attendance, 19
boys & girls & 8 infants; Miss Beatrice Cadman, mist

Blue Coat, Church street, founded in 1710; average
attendance, 20 boys & 20 girls, all of whom are taught
free; Alaric Pinder Boor, master; Mrs. E. M.
Thimbleby, mistress

Willesby’s, Winsover road (boys), founded in 1682 by
William Willesby; it will hold 156 children; average
attendance, go; Henry John White, master

Church Street (mixed & infants), erected in 1845 on a
site near the church at a cost of [r,600, since en-
larged ; it will now hold Gog children; average attend-
ance, 322; & supported by voluntary contributions;
Edward H, Andrew, head master; Miss Jane Law-
rance, infants’ mistress

Goodfellow’s, Spalding Common (mixed), erected in 1872
at a cost of 1,600, for 211 children; average attend-
ance, 158; & supported by voluntary contributions;
Miss Mary Elizabeth Mower, mistress '

St. John the Baptist, Hawthorn Bank, erected in 187%,
& since enlarged, for 227 children ; average attendance,
130; Miss Clara Brummitt, mistress

St. Norbert’s Catholic (mixed), Henrietta street, erected
in 1876; average attendance, 62z; Mrs. Emily Fidler,
mistress ; Miss Sarah Lynch, infants’ mistress

NEWSPAPERS,

Lincolnshire, Boston & Spalding Free Press, Hall place,
Spalding Free Press Printing & Publishing Co. Lim.
publishers; published tues

Spalding Guardian, zo Station street, R. Winfrey, pro-
prietor & publisher; published sat

CONVEYANCE.
Railway Station, Winsover road, William J. Mouncey,
station master
Omnibuses leave the ‘ Red ILion’ & the ¢ White Hart’
to meet every train
Great Eastern Railway, Charles Henry Robinson, agent,
Sheep market

CARRIERS, with inns they call at & days of departure.

Bourne—Reynolds, ¢ Pied Calf,’ tues
Crowland—Everett, ¢White Horse,” tues.; Bailey,
¢ White Lion,’ tues.; Frisby, ¢ New Bell,’ tues. & fri
Donington—Hempsall, ¢Red Lion,’ tues. & sat
Fosdyke—Machin, ¢White Horse,” tues.;
¢ New Bell,” tues

Gedneyhill—Mackman, ‘Lincoln Arms,’ tues

Holbeach Drove—A. Thomas, ¢ Greyhound,’” tues

Langtoft—Plowright, ¢ New Bell, tues

Long Sutton—G. H. Cooper, ¢ Lincoln Arms,’ tues

Market Deeping—Psll, ¢ New Bell,” tues.; Coaten, ¢Lin-
coln Arms,’ tues

Pinchbeck West—Dance, “Greyhound,” tues. thurs. &
sat.; Miller, ¢ Pied Calf,’ tues. wed, & sat.; Wigginton,
¢« Piled Calf,’ tues. & sat.; Rouse, ‘Pjed Calf, tmes.
wed; & sat .

Sutton St. James—Scrimshaw, ¢ Little Bull,’ tues. ; Free-
man, ¢ White Horse,” tues

Saracen’s Head—Bailey, ¢ White Lion,’ tues.; Andrews,
¢ New Bell,” tues

Whaplode Drove—Hatter, ¢ Ramskin,’ tues.; Mackmas,
¢Lincoln Arms,” tues -

Houghton,

< — b
Railway Carriers.—Sutton & Co. parcels only; Walden
& Sons, agents, 1a, London road
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PRIVATE RESIDENTS.
Allen Valentine Ingram, 11 London rd
Andrew Edward H. Cumberland ho.
St. Thomas’ road
Armstrong Fred, 2 Pinchbeck street
Ash Rev. Richard Guy M.A. (vicar
of St. Paul’s, Fulney & chaplain of :
Union), Fulney vicarage |
Ashwell Elmit, Matmore gate !
Bailey George, Whittington house,
Matmore gate
Banks William, Mercia lodge, Pinch-
beck road
Barker Matthew Edwin,
lodge, Winsover road
Barlow Stanley H. 11 Crescent
Barrell Gilbert, Claydon, Church st
Barrell Mrs. Atherton house, Spring
gardens
Barritt Gilbert Lacy, 15 High street
Bates Mrs. 5 Henrietta street
Bealby Fraderick James, Tattershall
house, Winsover road
Bell E. W., F.C.S. The Chantry,
Church street
Bennett Edward, 8 High street
Bilsborrow Rev. John T. (United
Methodist), 6 Henrietta street
Birch George, Cedar house, High st
Birch George Francis, 23 High street
Black Harry, =7 Double street
Blackbourn Edward, 26 Double street
Blades Sherriff, 32 Albert street
Blyton Edmund V. H. Cawdor house,
Broad street
Brett Charles, 27 Spring street
Brett Mrs. 31 Crescent
Brummitt Miss, g Henrietta street
Bullock Rev. Richard M.A. (vicar of
SS. Mary & Nicholas & rural dean),
Parsonage, Church street
Bunting John Henry, The
Pinchbeck road
Burdett George, 152, London road
Burg Joseph Henryv, Westbourne ldg.
Cowbit road
Cannell Charles, 29 Spring gardens
Capps Miss, 35 London road
Carruthers Miss Mary J.1 Henrietta st
Cartwright Miss Ethel, 21 London rd
Casswell Frederick, 4 Cornwall place,
Pinchbeck street
Caulton Mrs. Langtoft ho. Albion st
Charlesworth Rev. Edwd. (Wesleyan),
Wesley house, King’s road
Cherrington Richard, 24 London rd
Chester George, 32 Pinchbeck street
Clark Charles, Blymhill, Stonegate
Cark Henry J.P. Cley hail
Clements Wm.Hubbard, 28 London rd
Cockle Miss Eliza H. 25 Spring gdns
Cooke Earsham Turner,Albion house,
Albion street
Crabtree Alfred, The Tower,Cowbit rd
Trampton Walter B. 45 Double street
Crust Cecil, 21a, Pinchbeck road
Dalton Daniel, Grenoble, Cowbit road
Dignam Cushman H. Market place
Donington Mrs. 32 Crescent
Donington Robert, 26 Red Lion st
Driffill Miss, 84 London road
Edgley Walter, 15 Spring gardens
Edwards Arthur William, 18 High st
Elderkin Mrs. 16 Priory road
Elliott Jn. Broombank, Matmore gate
Elsom TIsaac, Stoneleigh, Pinchbeck st
‘Epton James, Selby house, High st
Farrow Ernest William, 43 London rd
Fletcher George, 24 Spring gardens
Fountain Benjamin, Warwick villa,
St. Thomas’ road
Frier Miss, 12 The Crescent
Galloway Peter M.B., C.M.
don road
Gentle Edward,
Pinchbeck street
George Frederick, 13 Priory road
Gibson Mrs. M. J. Weston house, St.
Thomas’ road
Gleed Jobn W, The Elms, London rd

West End

Elms,

16 Lon-

3 Cornwall place,
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Glenn Richard, Coal villa,Winsover rd

Gooch Edward William, Holland
house, High street

Goodwin William, 17 London road

Green Arthur, 32 Albion street

Groom William, High street

Hall George, 28 Westlode street

Hall Mrs. Langton ho. Cowbit road

Hallam Isaac, 1x High street

Hammant Hezekiah C. 10 Priory road

Hardy Mrs. Thomas Arch, 33 Pinch-
beck streeb

Ilarris John, 26 Spring gardens

Harvey Charles Lewis, Willesby,
Albion street

Harvey H. H. Willesby, Albion street

Harvey Leopold Chas. 15 London rd

Harvie Rev. Hayter Montague M.A.
(curate of SS. Mary & Nicholas),
Church gate

Hayes John, Rose villa, Albert street

Hibbins Mrs. Frederick, Rose villa,
Pinchbeck road

Hilliam Arth. Mispah lodge, Cross st

Hilliam Arthur Berkley, Westfield,
St. Thomas’ road

Hilliam Mrs. 12 Church gate

Hockney Richard, 3c Pinchbeck road

Hopper Mrs. Kate, 21 Spring streeb

Houldridge George Henry, Welland
house, Cowbit road

Houldsworth Mrs. 22 Pinchbeck road

Howard Fitzalan J.P. Holyrood ho.
Church gate

Howard William Fitzalan,
house, Church gate

Jarvis Geo. Norfolk ho. Spring grdns

Jones Rev. John Chatwin M.A. (Bap-
tist), Charnwood, Pinchbeck ruad

Judd Mrs. 7 Henrietta street

Kemp Mrs. 14 Church gate

Kinder Mrs. 17 Priory road

King Robert, Orledge villas, Wins-
over road

Kingston George P. Ingleside, Pinch-
beck strect

Laming Henry, The Laurels, Pinch-
beck street

Laming Mrs. Joseph, 14 London rd

Laming Mrs. Samuel, 23 London road

Laming Mrs. Welberry, 27 Pinch-
beck road

Laming Mrs.Whitsed,25 Pinchbeck rd

Lamport Charles, roa, Albion street

Leaper Mrs. g High street

Le Beeuf Henry Fredk. Market pl

Limmer George R. 3 Henrietta street

Limmer Miss M. E. 26 St. Thomas’ rd

Longbottom George, Stonegate lodge,
Church street

Longstaff Joseph Hy. 31 Pinchbeck st

Longstaff Richard, 36 London road

Macdonald Rev. Grant William M.A.

Holyrood

(vicar of St. John’s), St. John’s
Vicarage, Hawthorn bank
McGarrity Rev. Gilbert C.R.P.

(Catholic), 24 St. Thomas’ road

Madden Miss M. E., B.A. Grammar
school, Priory road

Maples Ashley K. 37 London road

Maples Harold Stanley, Sycamores,
Double streeb

Maples Misses, 10 High street

Marlow Mrs. N. Southernwood, Mat-
more gate

Marshall Watson, Boston honse, Wins-
over road

Massey George J.P. 27 London road

Massey Mrs. M. A. 46 Westlode st

Merry Major, 13 London road

Milne Edward, Haverfield, London rd

Morrison Hector McKay J.P. Angus
house, St. Thomas’ road

Morton Albert, 17 Pinchbeck road

Mulligan  Rev. Stephen - C.R.P.
(Catholic), 24 St. Thomas’ road

Munro David, Market place

Myers Fdk. Heath bank, Pinchbeck rd

Newton William, Welland ho. High st

Nussey George, 20 London road
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Osmond Leslie K.
Pinchbeck street

Owen William Robert, 48 Cross st

Page Miss Florence M., B.A. Welland
hall, London road

Parkinson Geo. Hy. St. Thomas’ rd

Pennington Charles, z5 London road

Fennington Mrs. Harrington house, 1
Broad street

Perry Martin M.D. 3 Church street

Perry Samuel Herbert, 4 Church st

Phillips Mrs.1 Halmer villas,Albert st

Pick Miss M. E. Spalding common

Pickworth Mrs. Riverdale, Cowbit rd

Plowman Mrs. 14 St. Thomas’ road

Plowright Miss, 18 Pinchbeck road

Power John Hugh, 38 London road

Pretty Walt. Mariner’s villa, Spring st

Price William J. 2 Cornwall place,
Pinchbeck street

Proctor Mrs. 85 London road

Richards Thomas, Llanberis,
Thomas’ road

Richardson Edward T. 4 Albion street

Riddington Miss, 12 Spring gardens

Rodgers Mrs. Agnes, Mowbray house,
Spring gardens

Salaman Harry, 9 London road

Savage John Richd. 32 Westlode st

Savage Mrs. r1 Priory road

Searby Stephen Henry, Norwood,
Broad street

Seymour Edwin Augustus Plenty, 21
Church street

Shadford Mrs.
Double street

Sharman Edwin J. g Broad street

Sharman Mrs. Cross street

Sharman William, 11 Market place

Shearme Ralph, 1 Cornwall place,
Pinchbeck street

Shelton John Alfred, 28 Pinchbeck rd

Shepperson Edward, Warwick villa, St.
Thomas’ road

Sinclair Charles,
London road

Sindall Misses, 29 High street

Sisson John Jas. 11 Pinchbeck street

Small John B. Bedford ho. London rd

Smith Albert A. 23 Pinchbeck road

Smith Edwd. M, 12 St. Thomas’ road

Softley Rev. William G. (Primitive
Methodist), 21 Green lane

Southwell William, Somborne villa,
‘Winsover road

Southwell William Alfred, Carisford,
St. Thomas’ road

Spicer E. V. Grammar school, Priory
road

Stableforth Miss, Barton house, St.
Thomas’ road

Stableforth Miss, St. Peter’s lodge,
Priory road

Stapleton Miss, 2 Spring street

Stiles Arth.Jalland J.P.18 London rd

Stiles Henry Tournay M.D., J.P. 18
Upper Welland ter. London road

Strongman Rev. Arthur James (Wes-
leyan), Havelock street

Tate Robert N. King’s road

Teasdale Alfred, 26 London road

Temple Mrs. M. 11 St. Thomas’ road

Tointon Roland, Fosbrooke house,
Spring gardens

Tointon Samuel, Elmsford ho. High st

Turner Arthur Edwd. 10 Henrietta st

Turner Arthur Richd. 15 Bridge st

Twelvetrees Joseph, Oakwood, St.
Thomas’ road

Tyck Rev. Clement C.R.P. (Catholic}.
24 St. Thomas’ road

Van Santen Rev. Frederick C.R.P.
(Catholic), 24 St. Thomas’ road

Walker Mrs. lgaria, 22 London road

Wallis Mrs. Isabella, 33 Spring street

‘Ward Mrs. Park road

Ward Mrs. Pheebe, Oak villa, Sn’

»

Thomas’ road

Welby Edward M. E. 21 High streeb

Welis Alfred, 83 London road
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‘Wetheral William, Willow Row walk

White Frank, 21 Pinchbeck road

White John Thomas, Belvedere, Lon
don road

White Tom A. Tower ho.Pinchbeck rd

White William, Foley house,Marsh rd

COMMEROIAL,
Early closing day, Thursday 2 p.m.

Adams & Hutchinson, bakers, 14 & 17 New road

Adcock Mary Jane (Mrs.), shopkeeper, 38 Albert street

Aistrup Thomas, basket maker, 3 Double street

Aitkin Thomas, shopkeeper, 34 Commercial road

Allaby William, bricklayer, 53 Hawthorn bank

Allen Arthur J. keeper Drill hall, Sheep market

Allenson John Brader & Sons, tailors, 160 & 161 Wins-
over road & 15 Hall place

Allenson Cornelius M. hatter & outfitter, 1 & 2 Hall place

Andrew Jas. & Robinson, harness makers, 15 Sheep mrkt

Andrews Charles, butcher, 15 Crescent

Andrews John Thomas, mechanical engineer, Mill lane

Appleby Robert (exors. of), printers & stationers, 10
Market place

Arden Daniel, beer retailer, 4 St. Thomas’ road

Arden Tom, beer retailer, 14 Bourn road

Ardron Richard, goods agent Midland Railway, Fitzball
house, St. Thomas’ road

Armstrong & Sons, millers (wind), Race grounds

Armstrong Fred, hay & straw merchant, 4z Pinchbeck st

Arnold J. & Son, carriage builders, Albion street

Arnold Joseph, hair dresser, Albion street

Ashby Thomas, wardrobe dealer, 18a, St. Thomas’ road

Ashling John, carpenter, Little London

Ashwell Elmit, stationer, 16 Bridge street

Ashwell Thomas, butcher, 3 Hall place

Askew Henry, Robin Hood P.H. 1 Bourn road

Atkin James Chas. master mariner, Fern cot. Albert st

Atton & Son,stone masons,6&7Station st.&18Spring gdns

Bailey Elizabeth (Mrs.), wardrobe dealer, 3 Westlode st

Bailey George, mushroom ketchup manufactr. Clay lake

Bailey John, highway surveyor, Ayscoughfee hall

Bain Harry, supt. of Deeping Fen Drainage & the River
Glen Bank Trastees, King’s road

Banks Bartholomew, farmer, Holbeach road

Barker George, bricklayer, 58 Westlode street

Barker George Richard, confectioner, 1 Broad street

Barker James, butcher, 25 Bridge street

Barker James, farmer, Childers drove

Barker Thomas S. pork butcher, 11 Winsover road

Barlow Stanley H. dentist, 11 Crescent

Barnett Mary Jane (Miss), dress ma. 7 Abbey buildings

Barnett Thomas, boot maker, 16 Crescent

Barrell & Son, wine & spirit merchants, 35 Hall place

Barritt Gilbert Lacy M.R.C.S., L.R.C.P.Lond. senior
surgeon to Johnson Hospital & to Spalding Dispensary,
coroner, certifying factory surgeon, public vaccinator
for the union, medical officer for union workhouse &
east district, Spalding union & medical officer to the
G. N, G. E. & M. railways & medical officer of health
for Spalding Urban District Council, 15 High street

Barwis William Robert, sanitary inspector to the Rural
District Council, 7 Prospect place

Bates Noah & Stanley, farmers,Halmer grange,Stonegate

Bates Alfred, baker, 18 Winsover road

Batterham Theophilus, beer ret. Royal Oak, Spalding com

Baxter Jn. Geo. market gdor. Park ho. Pinchbeck rd

Beales Arthur, cycle agent, 2 New road

Beales George, photographer, 5 New road

Bean Alfred, cabinet maker, Sheep market

Bean Charles E. house decorator, 7 Spring gardens

Beeby Frederick W. miller (wind & steam), Lit. London

Beecham John, Gate inn, Holbeach road

Belfitt Joseph, proprietor Red ., Jdon hotel, Market place

Bell Edward Wightman F.C.S. chemist & druggist, 7
Bridge street

Bennett & Son, butchers, g4 London Toad

Bennett Edward, builder, 7 & 8 High street

Bennett Henry, beer retailer, g4 London road

Bennett William, shopkeeper, 7 Double street

Berrill & Enderby,drapers & dress mas.26 & 27 Bridge st

Betts William, Ram Skin inn, Double street

Bingham David, coal dealer, 45 St. Thomas’ road

Birch G. F. & Son Ltd. corn, cake & hay & straw mer-
chants, 23 High st. & millers (wind), Pinchbeck road

Birch George Francis, corn dealer, 2 Bridge street

Black Harry, butcher, 2z Bridge street

Blackburn Edwin, cycle factor, 16 Sheep market

Blackstone & Co. Limited, engineers, St. Thomas’ road

Bland William, dairyman, 3 & 4 Church gate:

Blyton Edmund Van Houtte, solicitor, & steward of
manors of Spalding Crowland & East & West Hall,
Cockley Cley, Broad street

Bounlton Emma (Miss), shopkeeper, 26 Orescent
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Wiles Chas. Timothy, Market place
Wilkinson Mrs.The Manor ho.Broad st
Willcox Alfred T. 59 Double street
Wimhurst Harry R. Albion street
Lynton house,
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Woolley Charles P. g Church street
Worn Miss M. B. Park road

Wright John, Irongate ho. Cowbit rd
Wright Joseph S. 19 London road
Wright William C.E. 15 Pinchbeck rd
Yates Rev. Saml. (Congl.), 24 New rd

Bowman Walter, farmer, Spalding common

Bradley Charles Edward, Lincoln Arms P.H. 4 Bridge st

Brannan James, poulterer, 14 Double street

Branton Henry, farmer, Spalding fen, Cuckoo road

Brett Alfred, builder, 40 Cross street

Bridges Joseph, farmer, Low Fulney

Briggs Hy. Field, watch maker & jeweller, 19 Bridge sk

Bright William, beer retailer, g6 Commercial road

Brown Charles H. fried fish dealer, Red Lion street

Brown Elvan, keeper & receiver of fees at the cemetery,
Pinchbeck road

Brown George, cottage farmer, Spalding common

Brown George, fruiterer, 1 Sheep market

Brown William, hair dresser, 24 Bridge street

Brummitt Margaret M. (Mrs.), milliner, 2z Crescent

Bull George, butcher, 2o Albion street

Bunting Jn. Hy.farmer & grazier,The Elms,Pinchbeck rd

Burchnall Florence & Nellie (Misses), fancy repositories,
8 Station street

Burgess Arthur, goods agent Great Northern railway,
22 Cross street

Burrell Percy George, cabinet maker, 45 Westlode strees

Burton Joseph, supt. of police, Sheep market

Butler Alfred, Corn exchange keeper, Market place

Butler John, Royal Oak P.H. 25 Cowbit road

Butler Minnie (Mrs.), pork butcher, 7 New road

Calthrop & Leopold Harvey, solicitors, clerks to the
Deeping Fen Drainage Trustees, the River Welland
Drainage Trustees, Spalding & Pinchbeck Drainage
Trustees, River Glen Bank Trustees, clerks & receivers
to the Deeping St. Nicholas Washes Drainage Board,
the South Holland Embankment Drainage Trustees,
the Crowland & Cowbit Washes Drainage Trustees &
the Fourth District Drainage Trustees, Market place

Calthrop Joe George (firm, Calthrop & Leopold Harvey),
solicitor, clerk to the Commissioners of Sewers for
the Holland Elloe district, the South Holland Drainage
Trustees & the feoffees of the Spalding Rectory, Mar-
ket place

Capital & Counties Bank Limited (Charles Timothy
Wiles, manager), Market place; draw on head office,
39 Threadneedle street, London E C

Carter Abraham, fish, fruit & old iron dealer, 125 Com-
mercial road

Carter James, butcher, Francis street

Cash & Co. boot & shoe makers, 14 Sheep market

Caulton Edwin, insurance agent, a Albert street

Cave George C. The Still Vaults P.H. 39 Westlode street

Cemetery (Elvan Brown, keeper & receiver of fees),
Pinchbeck road

Chamberlain & Co. horse & cattle spice manunfacturers,
South Holland mills, High street

Chapman Eliza (Mrs.), baker, 13 Station street

Chapman Thomas, stone mason, Pinchbeck street

Chappell Edward, bricklayer, Broad street

Chatterton Wm. miller (wind) & baker, 57 Holbeach rd

Cherrington Richd. grocer & wine & beer.dlr.1 Bridge st

Chester Francis, dairyman & shopkpr. rrs Winsover rd

Chester George, grocer, 32 New road

Chilvers John (Mrs.), beer retailer, Little London

Chilvers John Joseph, auctioneer, Sheep market

Chipperfield Rudolph, oil & color man, 14 Bridge street

Clarke Mary (Miss), dress maker, Branston terrace,
King’s road .

Clayton John Robert, ironmonger, 24 Winsover road

Clements William Hubbard, solicitor & commissioner for
oaths & registrar of the County Court, Broad street;
& at Sleaford

Clifton William, shopkeeper, 36 Winsover road

Coaten Charlotte (Mrs.), shoplkeeper, 50 London road

Cobb William, shoeing smith, New road

Colburn Thomas, hair dresser, 31 Hall place

Cole Alfred, furniture dealer, Station st. & Westlode 5%

Collins Arthur, butcher, 32 & 33 Hall place

Constitutional Club (Matthew Edwin Barker, hon. sec.),
New road

Cook James, inspector of police, Sheep market

Cook John, boot repairer, 101 London road

Cook Robert, farmer, Decoy farm, Low road

Cook Solomon, beer retailer, Cowhirne

Cooke Earsham Turner, coal merchant, Station yard

Cooke Frank, farmer, Town End manor

Cooley & Son, tailors, 10 Bridge street

Cooper & Sons, builders, 17 Chapel lane

Corbett Arthur, insurance agent, Winsover road

St.
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Corby J. B. & Son, architects & surveyors, Hall Place
chambers

Corn Exchange (Alfred Butler, keeper), Market place

Cotton Chas. market gdnr. & fruit grower, Winsover rd

Cotton Thomas, grocer, 43 Double street

Cotton William, market gardener, Pinchbeck road

County Counrt (His Honor Sir George S. Baker bart.;
William Hubbard Clements, registrar & high bailiff),
Sessions house, Sheep market

County Police Station (Joseph Burton, superintendent ;
James Cook, inspector), Sheep market

Coupland William, The Cuckoo P.H. Cuckoo road

Cox George, Peacock P.H. Pinchbeck street

Crampton George, shopkeeper, & post office, Lit. London

Crampton Walter B. rate collector for Urban District
Council, Double street & actuary to the Savings Bank,
Hall place

Crampton William, milk dealer, 25 Spring street

Crawford William John, watch maker, & deputy regis-
trar of marriages, 21 New road

Cross Godfrey, Pied Calf P.H. Sheep market

Crowther Ethel (Miss), shopkeeper, 59 London road

Croxford Green, Pigeon inn, Holbeach road

Crust Richard & Son, market gardeners, 13 Church gate

Crust Cecil, solicitor, 28 Red Lion street

Culpin Frederick, bulb grower & farmer, Low road

Culpin R. bulb & fruit grower, The Chestnuts, Low rd

Cunnington Farmery Epworth, shopkeeper,69 London rd

Curtis Maria (Miss), shopkeeper, 8 Herring lane

Dalton & Son, furniture dealers, 149 & 150 Winsover rd

Dawson Elsie May (Miss), confectioner, 15 Winsover rd

Dawson Harry, fried fish retailer, 13 Wingover road

Delahoy G. & Sons, tailors, 33 & 36 New road

Dennis James Henry, pork pie maker, 26 Market place

Dennison Thomas Henry, farmer, Burr lane

Dignam Cushman H. manager of Lincoln & Lindsey
Banking Co. Limited, Market place

Dodd George, blacksmith, High street

Donington James & Co. ironmongers, 12 Bridge street

Donington & Co. wholesale & retail chemists & druggists,
7 Market place & 13 Sheep market

Drewery Wm. thrashing machine owner, Little London

Driffill Fred, draper, Market place

Driffill John Thomas, plumber & glazier, 15 New road

Dring Samuel James, Ship Albion hotel, zr Albion st

Duckworth Evelyn, electrical engineer, 36 New road

Duckworth Harry, Black Swan hotel, New road

Earl William, keeper Constitutional Club, New road

Eason Thomas, coach builder, 33 Westlode street

Fastmans Limited, butchers, Market place

Edgley Walter, grocer, 18 Market place

Edwards Thomas, timber merchant, Chapel lane

Egar James William, tailor, 43 Albion street

Elderkin Thos.& Son,china & glass wareho.3 Crack Pool la

Elderkin James, beer retailer, 122 Commercial road

Eley William, builder, 18 & 19 Cowbit road

EHiott Herbert William, insurance agent, Spes Bona
cottages, Winsover road

Elsom George, rope manufacturer & seed merchant, g
Market place; rope works, Pinchbeck road

Elvidge John, farmer, Deeping High bank

Enderby Harry Lacey, harness maker, 5 Market place
& Crescent

Evans Alexander, White Horse P.H. Churchgate

Everett John William, plumber, 2 Sheep market

Eyre Edwin Llewellyn, farmer, Childers drove

Facer Henry, harness maker, 6 London road

Fairbanks William, greengrocer, 4 Crack Pool lane

Fall Hy. Hole-in-the-Wall P.H. Hole-in-the-Wall passage

Faulkner Charles, tailor, 31 St. Thomas’ road

Fidler John, chimney sweeper, Winsover road

Fisher Edmund, relieving officer for Spalding district,
vaccination officer for Spalding & Moulton districts &
inspector of nuisances for the parish of Deeping St.
Nicholas for the Rural District Council,14 Cross street

Fletcher George, coal merchant, 24 Spring gardens

Flebcher William, outfitter, 6 Market place

Flint John, farmer, Cowhirne

Foreman Henry, wheelwright, Commercial road

Foreman Thomas H. beer retailer, 6 Winsover road

Foster George, farmer, Pennygate

Fountain Benjamin, deputy supt. registrar, Warwick
villa, St. Thomas’ road

¥reeman, Hardy & Willis Limited, boot & shoe makers,
4 Market place & 8 Hall place

Freir Samuel, farmer, Decoy farm, Spalding common

Frost Herbert George, draper, 27 & 28 Crescent

Galloway Peter M.B., C.M. physician, 16 London reoad

Gas Works (Urban District Council, proprietors; Harry
R. Wimhurst, manager), Albion street

George Frederick, plumber, Victoria street

Gibbs Sidney William, boot repairer, Westlode street
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Gleed John Wilson, wine & spirit merchant, Red Lion st

Glenn B. & Son, coal & coke merchants, G. N. R. sta-
tion yard

Gooch Edward William, fellmonger & farmer, Clay lake
& High street

Goodwin George, registrar of births & deaths for Spald-
ing sub-district, 10 Market place

Gosling Edwin, boot & shoe maker, 10 Station street

Goss George, boot maker, Mercers row

Gostelow Arthur Palmer, fruit & bulb grower, Fulney

Grassam William, inspector of weights & measures to
the Administrative County Council for the parts ot
Holtand, 1 Double street

Grassam William Henry, brewers’ agent, Verbena villa,
St. Thomas’ Toad

Great Eastern Railway Co. forwarding agents (Charles
Henry Robinson, agent), Sheep market

Green James Herbert, fancy repository, 2z Station st

Green Samuel, beer retailer, 162 Winsover road

Greenall Isaac Earl, furniture dealer, 9 & 10 New road

Griffiths William John, boot repairer, Little London

Groom William, timber & slate merchant, High street

Ground Wm. Sidney, brewer & beer Tet. 21 Winsover rd

Guy & Son, furniture dealer, 34 New road

Guy Thomas, farniture dealer, 2r Crescent

Haines Hollington Stapleton, clothier & outfitter,
34 Hall place

Hall George & Son; auctioneers, valuers, appraisers,
accountants, house, land, estate, insurance & shipping
agents & Teceiving agents for Midland Railway Co.
New road

Hallam & Blackbourn, wholesale grocers, Double street
& retail grocers, 18 Hall place

Hallas Gertrnde Mary (Mrs.), confectioner, g Station st

Hamilton Robt. Hy. inland revenue officer,St.Thomas’ rd

Hancock Edward, jun. ccoal merchant, Station street

Hand Richard Holmes H. architect, Double street

Hankin William Little, furniture dealer, 27 Hall place

Hardwick Charles W. Cross Keys family & commercial
hotel, 29 Hall place

Hardy Ben, boot repairer, 5 London road

Hardy Thomas A. brazier, 17 Bridge street & Crescent

Hardy’s Kimberley Breweries Limited (Claude XKing,
agent), Red Lion street

Harper Samuel Robinson, White Hart family & com-
mercial hotel & posting house, wine & spirit merchant,
omnibus to meet all trains, Market place

Harpham Brothers, carpenters, Willow Row walk

Harris Jn. Chas. & Son, watch mas. & jewellers, 9 Hall pl

Harrod Alfred, painter, 2 Abbey buildings

Harrod John, confectioner, 11 Vine st. & Westlode st

Harvey Charles Lewis, solicitor, & deputy clerk to the
Urban District Council, 8 Double street

Harvey Henry Herbert, solicitor & commissioner for oaths,
clerk to the Urban District Council & receiver of the
South Holland & general works & adventurers & Wel-
land drainage taxes, 8 Double street

Harvey Leopold Charles (firm, <Calthrop & Leopold
Harvey), solicitor & commissioner for oaths, clerk to

SPALDING.

the Moulton Salt Marsh Drainage Trustees, the
Governors of the Spalding Grammar School, the
Managers of the Spalding Council School, the

Managers of the Surfleet Council School, the Sutton
Bridge Urban District Council, the Land & Property
Tax Commissionegs, rteceiver River ‘Glen Bank
Trustees, deputy coroner for the South Holland Elloe
district & steward of the manor of Spalding-cum-
Members, Whaplode Kirkfee & Whaplode Hagbeach,
Market place; & Albert street, Holbeach (thursdays)

Haw Arthur, shoeing smith, Sheep market

Hawcroft Anderson Hind, coal dealer, 11 Hawthorn bank

Hayes Henry, fishmonger, o Bridge street

Haylor Ernest James, dr8per, 1 to 6 Station street

Hobson & Co. drapers, 11 Market place

Hockergon Elizabeth (Mrs.), yeast agent, 18 New road

Hocknéy Annie (Mrs.), temperance hotel, Market place

Holden Isaac, greengrocer, 13 New road

Hole James & Co. Limited (branch office), brewers, 3
Sheep market

Holland County Council Weights & Measures Office
(William Grassam, inspector), 1 Double street

Holland Thomas Plowright, commission agt.1z2 Priory rd

Hopkins John Rogby, miller (wind) & baker, Spalding comx

Houldridge George Henry, clothier, 15 & 16 Station st

Howard William Fitzalan, solicitor, 6 Herring lane

Hubbard Frank, Welland inn, London road

Hulbert Herbert, Black Bull P.H. New road

Hunt John, boot repairer, 44 Commercial road

Hurling George, farmer, Spalding common

Hurn George Thomas, tailor, Crescent

Hurrey John, shoe agent, Elm villa, Albert street

Hurry Harry, farmer, Deeping High bank
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Infirmary & Dispensary (P. Galloway M.B,,C.M., Marten
Perry M.D., Gilbert Lacy Barritt M.R.C.S., L.R.C.P.
Lond., J. H. Power M.R.C.S., L.R.C.P, & Samuel
Herbert Perry M.R.C.S.Eng.,L.R.C.P.Lond. surgeons),
Johnson Hospital, Priory road

Ingamells George Edward, bger retailer, 27 Holbeach rd

Inland Revenue Office (Robert Henry Hamjlton, officer),
St. Thomas’s road

Irternational Tea Co.’s Stores Limited (Edward Watson,
manager), grocers & tea dealers, 6 Hall place

Ives William, farmer, South drove

James Amos, baker, 76 Commercial road

James Thomas, grocer, 15 Albion street

Jarvis William, cottage farmer, Cowbit road

Jepson Sam, commecl. trav.Cambridge ho.St.Thomas’ rd

Jepson William, builder, 17 Spring gardens & 18 Haw-
thorne bank

Jinks William, farmer, Holbeach road

Johnson Fred, builder, 1a, Swan street .

Johnson Hospital (Henry Tournay Stiles M.D. hon. phy-
sician; P. Galloway M.B., C.M., Marten Perry M.D.
& S. H. Perry M.R.C.S. physicians; Gilbert Lacy
Barritt L.R.C.P.Lond. & J. H. Power M.R.C.S.,
L.R.C.P. surgeons; Miss J. Cooke, matron; Ashley
K. Maples, hon. sec.; William Fitzalan Howard,
clerk), Priory road

Johnson Louisa (Miss), dress maker, Holbeach road

Johnson Thomas, btaker, Little London

Jones’ Century Boot Depot, boot & shoe mas. 22 Hall pl

Jones William, apartments, 15 Churchgate

Kingston S. & G. auctioneers, valuers & land & in-
surance agents, agents for Jos. Fison & Co.’s artificial
manures, Hall Place chambers; & at Holbeach

Knipe Frank E. fried fish shop, Commercial road

Laming Henry, watch maker & jeweller, 16 Hall place

Lanham Gilbert, grocer, & post office, 25 Commercial rd

T.aw Thomas, butcher, 50 Albion street

Lawrence James Stainforth, hair dresser, 8 New road

Lawson John, farmer, Fulney

Le Beeuf Henry Frederick, manager of Stamford, Spald-
ing & Boston Banking Co. Limited, Market place

Lee & Green Ltd. mineral water manufactrs. Albion st

Lee John, Greyvhound P.H. Crack Pool lane

Leverton H. & Co. motor engineers, 45 Pinchbeck street

Levesley Caroline E. (Mrs.), Vine inn,21 Commercial rd

T.ewis Eve (Miss), dress maker, 22 Victoria street

Limbert Jn. Robt.cycle & sewing machine agt.16 New rd

Limmer George R. wheelwright, undertaker & cart
& wagon builder, St. Thomas’ Road works

Lincoln & Lindsey Banking Co. Limited (branch) (Cush-
man H. Dignam, manager), Market place; draw on
London & Westminster Banking Co. Lim. London E C

Lineolnshire, Boston & Spalding Free Press (Spalding Free
Press Printing & Publishing Co. Ltd. publishers;
published tuesday), Hall place

Lincolnshire Skating Association (E. I. Royce Stapleton,
hon. sec.); head quarters, White Hart hotel

Lindon Alfred John, insurance agent, 17 Winsover road

London Central Meat Co. Ltd. (The), butchers, =2ob,
Bridge street

Longbottom Tyrer Johnson, grocer, 1 Commercial road

Longstaff Richard & Co. auctioneers & valuers, fire
assessors, estate agents & certified bailiffs under the
“ Law of Distress Amendment Act ;” offices,Sheep mkt

Longstaff Richard, assistant overseer & assessor & col-
lector of taxes, Sheep market

Louth John Henry, dairyman, 5 Church street

Louth Walter, watch maker & jeweller, 13a, Hall place

Lowden William B. farmer, Low road & Fulney

Luck Robert, builder, 8 Spring gardens

Luesby Albert, chimney sweeper, 54 Commercial road

Lunn John Robert, hair dresser, Winsover road

Lynn Joseph, New Bell P.H. London road

McLeod Angus, travelling draper, g Crescent

Macro Henry Reuel, picture frame malker, 7 Broad sl

Manning Samuel, leather dealer, 4 Double street

Maples & Son, solicitors, 23a, New road

Maples Ashley Kilshaw, solicitor (firm, Maples & Son),
238, New road

Maples Harold Stanley (firm, Maples & Son), solicitor &
perpetual commissioner for taking affidavits & clerk
to the county justices, clerk to Spalding union,
guardians & assessment committee, Rural District
Council, Moulton endowed & council schools & receiver
of Spalding & Pinchbeck drainage rates & superinten-
dent registrar, 23a, New road

Mapperley Coliiery Co. coal merchants (Richard Butler,
agent), 21 Station street

Marshall & Co. drapers, 2 Market place

Marshall Edward S. bazaar, 28 Hall place

Mason Thomas, farmer, Deeping High bank

Massey Geo. & Sons, seed merchants, 17 Market pl
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Massey & Hallam, mechanical & electrical engineers, 46'
Westlode street )

Matthews George, draper, 20 Hall place

Maugham Elizabeth (Mrs.), grocer, 35 New road

Mawby John, farmer, Spalding marsh

Mawby Thomas ‘Onn,.farmer, Spalding marsh

Measures & Sons, mineral water agents, Crescent

Mechanics’ Institute (Charles Delahoy, librarian), Red
Lion street

Merry Major, solicitor & commissioner for opaths, 6
Broad street

Mitchell Henry & Co. music sellers, 25 New road

Molson Algernon H. chemist, 6 New road

Monk Arth, insur. supt. Powell house, St. Thomas' rd

Morgan Daniel, clothier, Chapel lane

Morgan’s Brewery Co. Limited ; stores, Vine street

Morley Albert Edward, commercial trav. 7 Priory road

Morris George, beer retailer, 26 Hall place

Morton Albert Edward, fruit grewer, 17 Pinchbeck road

Mossop & Mossop, solicitors (tues. only), 2 Red Lion st

Munro David, manager of National Provincial Bank of
England Ltd. & insurance agent, 22 & 23 Market place

Murrell William R. printer, 23 Station street

Musson Ada (Mrs.), shopkeeper, 59 Albion street

Nainby Kate (Mrs.), draper, 17 Station street

National Provincial Bank of England Limited (branch)
(David Munro, manager), 2z & 23 Market place; draw
on head office, 112 Bishopsgate st. within, London EC

Naylor Charles, bill poster, Park road

Neal William, fancy repository, 19 Station street

Nelson Thomas, confectioner, 12 Winsover road

Newport Albert, dining rooms, 5 Winsover road

Newton Wm. agent to Wombwell Main Colliery Co, Lim. 3
office, Station yard; res. Welland house, High street

Nichols Arthur W. grocer, 30-31 High street

North British & Mercantile Fire & Life Insurance Co.
& Norwich & London Accident Insurance Association
(S. & G. Kingston, agents), Hall Place chambers

Osgerby Thomas Grassam, thrashing machine owner,
Horse Shoe bridge, Cuckoo road

Osmond & Son, manufacturers of animal medicines,
sheep dips, horse & cattle spice, calf food, disinfec-
tants, proprietors of “ Osmonds’ Oils,” Standard chemi-
cal works

Owen William Robert, postmaster & distributor of
stamps, Sheep market

Pack George, blacksmith, Little London

Padley Thomas, insurance agent, 8 Victoria stree}

Page Florence M. (Miss) B.A. ladies’ school, Welland
hall, London road

Palmer Albert Edward, surveyor, 39 Winsover road

Palmer Harry Smith, tobacconist, 11 New road

Pannell Joseph, boat builder, 25 Marsh road

Papworth Emma & John, confectioners, 8 & ¢ Francis sk

Parkinson Alfred, butcher, 103 Winsover road

Parkinson Minetta A. (Miss), tobacconist, 10a, Station sk

Parkinson Thos. Wm. carpenter & joiner, Pinchbeck rd

Parsons John, plumber, 6 High streeb

Patchett Thomas, market gardener, Lower Fulney

Peacock, Willson & Co. (branch) (L. F. Evans, manager)
(tues. & sat. only), Hall Place chambers; draw on
Lloyds Bank Limited, London E C

Peake John, builder, 16 Double street

Peake Samuel Woolley, registrar of marriages, Red
house, Low road

Peake William Blott, farmer, Red house, Low Toad

Peark’s Limited (Arthur Bagley, manager), grocers &
tea dealers, 17 Hall place

Pearson Joseph, cowkeeper, Clay lake

Pearson Thomas, tailor, 23 Victoria street

Peck Alfred Sydney, insurance agent, 6o Winsover road

Peck William, boot & shoe maker, Cordwain cottage,
Winsover road

Pell Edward Alfred, White Swan P.H. New road

Penistan Harry Holmes, music seller, Crack Pool lane

Pennington & Sons, drapers, 10, 11, 12 & 13 Hall place

Pennington Charles, draper, 7 Hall place

Pepper John Charles, joiner, 1 Winsaver road

Perkins John Robert, farmer, Little London

Perry Marten M.D., M.R.C.S.Eng., L.S.A. physician
& surgeon, 3 Church street

Perry Samuel Herbert M.R.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond.
physician & surgeon & medical officer of health to the
Rural Distriot Counecil, 4 Church street

Peterborough Ceal Consumers’ Co. Limited, coal mer-
chants, 11 Francis street

Phillips Annie Mary (Miss), teacher of music, 1 Halmer
villas, Albert street

Pickering William, farmer, Cowbit Lower road

Plowman George Wm, corn & flour merchant, High st

Plumb William, cowkeeper, Cowbit road

Pollin William, clothier, Chapel lane
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Porter Fanny (Mrs.), bookseller, 24 Market place
Potts Annie (Miss), dress maker, 5a, Chapel lane
Power John Hugh M.R.C.S.Eng., L.R.C.P.Lond. phy-
sician & medical officer & public vaccinator, Deeping
St. Nicholas & West Spalding districts, Spalding
union, 38 London road .
Preston Alfred, watclr & clock maker, 23 Bridge street
Preston Arthur, antique furniture dealer, 1 Swan street
Pretty Joseph, farmer, Holbeach road
Pretty Walter, land surveyor, Red Lion street
Price Henry, farmer, Park farm, Deeping High bank
Proctor Henry Matthew, farmer, Spalding marsh
Pye Harry, chemist, 8 Bridge street
Rayner James, baker, 31 Winsover road
Red Lion Hotel; family & commercial; motor
garage; stock room; posting in all its branches;
proprietor, Joseph Belfitt, Market place
Reeks Frederick Henry M.R.C.V.S. & H.C,, F.R.C.V.S.
veterinary surgeons, 24 Red Lion street
Renshaw Frank, Bull inn, Churchgate
Reynolds James, cottage farmer, Spalding common
Reynolds John Smith, farmer, Deeping High bank
Reynolds William Smith, blacksmith, & post office,
Spalding common
Richards Thomas, grocer, Post office, 25 Winsover road
Kicher George Henry, boot maker, 7 London road
Riggall George, New inn, Spalding common
Bobinson Brothers, grocers, 159 Winsover road
Robinson Chas. Hy. goods agt. G. E. Rly. Sheep markt
* Rodwell Thomas, farmer, Lower Fulney
Rossington George Andrew, carman, 7 Westlode street
Russell Fdk. pianoforte tuner,4 Remstone cots.Cowbit rd
Salter John, builder, 157 Winsover road
Sankey Harry, nurseryman, Winsover road
Savings Bank (Walter B. Crampton, actuary); open tues,
10 3.m. t0 I p.m.; saturdays 7 to 8 p.m.; 36 Hall pl
Saxton John Thomas, farmer, Spalding marsh
Scales & Sons Limited, boot makers, 21 Hall place
Schrimshaw John Henry, castrator; insurance agt.
for first-class life, fire, accident & live stock offices,
Winsover road .
Scotney Walter Wait, tobacconist, 44 Pinchbeck street
Scott Charles, bulh grower, Pennygate .
Scott George, cottage farmer, Cowbit house, Deeping
High bank .
Seaton Herbert, baker, 4 Commercial road
Selby & Co. grocers, 30 Hall place
Seymour Andrew Valentine, tobacconist, 6 Broad street
Seymour Arthur L. markets & sanitary inspector & col-
lector of market tolls & tobacconist, 17 Sheep market
Shadford & Co. (James Epton), chemists, 21 Market pl
Sharman Frederick, farmer, Marsh road
Sharman Harry, cycle agent, 193, Winsover road
Sharman John George, dairy farmer, Fulney hall
Sharpe Chas. & Co. Ltd. seed mers. & growers, High st
Shearme Ralph (lole, comumission agent, 1 Cornwall
place, Pinchbeck street
Shelton Bertrand (Mrs.), shopkeeper, Hawthorn bank
Shelton Jn. Alfd. dentist, 3 Pinchbeck st.; & at Boston
Shepherd George R. tailor, Winsover road
Shepherd Lena (Mrs.), dress maker, 28 Spring gardens
Shillaker Lois (Miss), fancy draper, 8 Bridge street
Simpson Thomas, harness maker, 7 London road
Simson Frederick W. butcher, 19 Hall place
Singer Sewing “Machine Co. Limited, 14 Station street
Singleton Philip, beer retailer, 1o Francis street
Sketcher Charles, farmer, Deeping High bank
Sketcher Charles, fried fish shop, 3 Francis street
Sketcher Henry, boot repairer, 6 St. Thomas’ road
Sketcher John, farmer, Lower Fulney
Skinner Thomas Jessop, grocer, 11 Bridge street
Skipworth Ernest Alfred, Punch Bowl P.H. New road
Sly Arth. Livesley, coal mer.& frmr. Pomona vil.Fulney
Sly Fred, farmer, Holbeach road
Sly George, farmer, Spalding common
Smalley Joseph, market gardener, 47 St. Thomas’ road
Smart Betsy (Mrs.), Plough inn, Low fields
Smith W. H. & Son, booksellers, Railway station
Smith Alfred, beer retailer, 36 Westlode street
Smith Charles, cattle dealer, Fulney
Smith Edward, farmer, Monk’s house, Bourn road
Smith Edward Hy. beer retailer, Crane inn, 1o Double st
Smith Edward M. artist, 12 St. Thomas’ road
Smith Edward S. dentist, 18 Bridge street
Smith Gecrge Richard, higgler, 14a, Holbeach road
Smith Henry, shopkeeper, 37 Westlode street
Smith Henry C. baker, 23 Red Lion street
Smith Jane (Mrs.), beer retailer, g6 Winsover road
Smith Richard, steward Spalding club, Broad street
Smith Samuel, umbrella maker, 23 Crescent
Smith Walter, photographer, 18 Station street
Smith William Thomas, market eardener, 31 New road
Soames & Co.brewers, maltsters & spirit mers. Cowbit rd
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Sculby, Sons & Winch Limited, brewers; stores, Comy
mercial road

Spalding Christian Association & Literary Institute
(William Atton, sec.), Spring gardens

Spalding Club Co. Limited {Stephen Henry Searby,
sec.), Broad street

Spalding Oonservative & Unionist Assogiation (M., E,
Barker, hon, sec.), New road

Spalding Cricket Olub (Arthur Sedgley, hon.
meets at Black Swan, New road

Spalding District Liberal Club Co. Limited (Charles
Rayner, hon. sec.), Crescent

Spalding Division Liberal Council (Arthur C. Nainby,
organising sec. & Liberal agent), 3 Crescent

Spalding Fishing Club (H. S. Maples, hon. sec.} Andrew
Valentine Seywour, acting sec.), Broad street

Spalding Free Press Printing & Publishing Co. Limited,
stationers & printers & agents for Norwich Union Fire
Insurance Co, Hall place

Spalding Gentlemen’s Society (Marten Perry M.D.presi-
dent; H. Stanley Maples, hon. treas.; A. K. Maples,
hon. sec.; E. M. Smith, hon. operator), Johnson’s
Hospital, Priory road .

Spalding Grammar School (

head master; E. V. Spicer, L. J. Driver, H. G.

W. Woodhall & E. W. Bell F.C.S. assistant masters ;
Miss M. E. Madden B.A.Dub. governess), Priory road

Spalding Guardian (Richard Winfrey, proprietor & pub-
lisher ; published saturday), 2o Station street

Spalding Industrial Co-operative Society Limited (Saml.
Green, manager), 151 & 152 Yinsover road

Spalding Laundry Co. Limited (George Forinton, mgr.),
Pinchbeck Toad

Spalding Primrose League (Miss Maples, sec.), Consti~
tutional club, New road

Spikins Edmund, wood turner, 3 Winsover road

Spikins John, confectioner, 6 Sheep market

Spriggs George, inspector, Spalding station G. N. R.
‘Stepping Stone villa, King’s road

Stamford, Spalding & Boston Banking Co. Limited
(branch) (H. F. Le Bceuf, manager), Market place ;
draw on Barclay & Company Limited, L.ondon E C

Stanger David, carriage builder, 20 New road

Stanger Jn. Wm. beer ret. & chimney swpr.2o0 Double st

Stanton Charles, iron founder, 19 Winsover road

Star Tea Company Limited (George T. Hardy, mgr.),
13 Bridge street

Stark Fanny W. (Mrs.), beer retailer, 163 Winsover rd

Steel Elizabeth (Mrs.), grindery dealer, Winsover road

Stennett Henry, farmer, South dreve

Stevenson J. & Son. grocers, ra, Hawthorn bank

Stimson Frank E. engineer at the Waterworks,
Pinchbeck road

Stock Henry James, tobacconist, 71 Double street

Storr Mary Jane (Mrs.), pork butcher & poulterer, 7
Winsover road .

Stow Lydia (Mrs.), draper, 14 Hall place

Stubbs & Catt, drapers, 3 Market place

Swain Thos. insur. supt. Orledge villas, Winsover road

Swift Dean, carter &c. Cowbit road

Symes Susan (Mrs.), dress maker, 4 Pinchbeck street

Taylor George, wheelwright & carpenter, Spalding commn

Taylor John, market gardener, Lower Fulney

Taylor Martin, market gardener, 13 Albion street

Temperance Hall (Fred Walden, sec.), Crescent

Territorial Battalion (4th) Lincolnshire Regiment (F
Co.) (Capt. G. J. Barrell; Color-Sergt, F. Shepherd,
drill instructor), Drill hall, Sheep street

Thimbleby William, hair dresser, 3 & 4 New road

Thorpe Francis William, shoe maker, 16 Red Lion streeb

Thorpe Mark, White Lion hotel, High street

Thorpe Willie, farmer, Cowbit road

Tidswell John, shopkeeper, Little London

Tomline William, clothier, 23 Hall place

Tomlinson James, cattle dealer, 13 Crescent

Toynfon Harry H. baker, 6 Albert street

Trengrove John D. musical instrument seller, 12 Vine st

Turnell John William, insurance agent, 19 Double street

Turner Arthur Edward, insurance supt. 1o Henrietta st

Turner Jchn. Ancel inn, & harbour master, Double st

Turner’s Clothing Stores, clothiers & ontfitters, 15
Bridge street

Twelvetrees Joseph, carpenter & joiner, Spring gardens

Tyler Arthur, tobacconist, 20 Bridge street

Tyson Edward, beer retailer, Little London

Vause Chas. Freshney, house painter, 2z St. Thomas’ rd

Vine Edward, tailor, 57 Albion streeb

Wade Arthur, butcher, 2 Albion street

Wadsley & Son, monumental masons, 70 Westlode st

Waite Annie (Mrs.), temperance hotel & dining rooms,
11 Station street

Walden & Sons, grocers, zo Love lane; 3 & 4 London
road & agents for Sutton & Co. carriers, 1a,London rd
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Walker Herbert, tailor, 48 London road

Walpole Joseph Sargent, cottage farmer, Cuckoo road

Waltham Joseph, farmer, Ash Tree house, Spalding com

Ward Thos. beer retlr. & shopkpr. 30 & 31 Westlode st

Wardell Matthew, beer retailer, Green Man, Spalding com

Waring Lilian E. (Mrs.), girls’ school, Froebel,Priory rd

Warnes Arthur, boot repairer, 39 St. Thomas’ road

Water Works (Joe George Calthrop, sec.; Frank E.
Stimson, engineer), Pinchbeck road

Watson & Co. builders, Double street

Watson George, boot maker, z2o0a, Bridge street

Watson Robert W. beer retailer, Pinchbeck road

Watscn William, plumber, g Red Lion street

Welbourn Isaac, greengrocer, 89 Commercial road

Welby John Thomas, farmer, Spalding fen, Cuckoo road

Wellband Richd. Dawson, market gardener,82 London rd

Wenham William, painter, 56 Albion street

West ‘George, florist, Pinchbeck road

West Mary Ann (Miss), greengrocer, 3 Bridge street

Westmcreland Matilda Sly & Barnet Emma Jane
(Misses), dress makers, 48 Albion street

Westmoreland Richard, cowkeeper, Holbeach road

Wherry E. & Sons, wholesale grocers, 1 Church street

White Brothers, hakers, 5 Crescent

White J. T. & Son, general & fancy repository, 8, 9, 10
& 11 Sheep market & 1 Market place

White & Sons, bulb growers, Little London

White Alfred, farmer, Little London

White Harold William, coach builder, 42 Westlode st

White Henry Willis, bulb grower, Cadge bank

White Philip, butcher, 4 Hall place

White Tom A. auctioneer, valuer & estate agent, Sheep
market

SPANBY is a parish and village, 2 miles south from
Aswarby station on the Bourne and Sleaford branch of the
Great Northern railway, 3% north-east from Folkingham
and 6 south from Sleaford, in the North Kesteven division
of the county, parts of Kesteven, Aveland wapentake,
Sleaford petty sessional division, union and county court
district, rural deanery of Aveland No. 1, and archdeaconry
and diocese of Lincoln. The church of St. Nicholas, re-
built in 1882, at a cost of £765, is a small building of red
brick with red Ancaster stone dressings in the Early
English style, consisting of apsidal chancel, nave, west
porch and a bell turret containing one bell: there are 65
sittings. The register dates from the year 1681. The
living is a rectory, annexed to the vicarage of Swaton,
joint net yearly value /f325, with residence, in the gift

COMMERCIAL.
Baker Thomas, farmer
Chapman George, farmer Lord John, farmer

SPILSBY is a small market town on the road from
Boston to Louth, in a pleasant position on mn acclivity
overlooking a vast tract of marsh and fen land, extending
southward to the Boston Deeps, with a terminal station
on a branch of the Great Northern rajlway, and is 17
miles north-east from Boston, 10 east-south-east from
Horncastle, 16 south-by-east from Louth, 8 south-west
from Alford, 9 north-west from Wainfleet and 126 from
London, and is the head of a union and county court
district and petty sessional division, in the South Lindsey
division of the county, parts of Lindsey, east division of
Bolingbroke soke, rural deanery of Hill No. 2, and arch-
deaconry and diocese of Lincoln. The Spilsby and Firsby
branch of the East Lincolnshire Railway Company was
opened in 1868. The town is well built and consists
chiefly of two streets and the Market place, which is inter-
sected in the centre by a row of houses. It is lighted with
gas from works in the Ashby road, erected in 1854, and
belonging to a company.

A new water supply was opened in July, 1908, by the
North East Lincolnshire Water Co.; the pumping sta-
tion is in Hundleby and the reservoir, which has a
capacity of 75,000 gallons, is on Raithby Hill, the water
descending by gravitation to Spilsby; the supply is of
excellent quality and practically inexhaustible.

The church of St. JTames is an edifice of green sandstone
and brick, chiefly in the Decorated and Perpendicular styles,
consisting of chancel, duuble nave with clerestory, north
aisle, north or Willoughby chapel and an embattled Per-
pendicular western tower with pinnacles and containing a
clock and 6 bells : the earliest portions of the structure are
the nave arcades, dating apparently from the early part of
the r4th century, to which period the arcade opening into
the chapel seems also to belong: about the middle of the
same century the south aisle was removed, and a large
secondary nave erected, of which the eastern portion con-
stitutes the present chancel, the remainder forming about
half of the existing nave: in the 14th century there was a
chapel here dedicated to the Holy Trinity, of which the
arcade of the Willoughby chapel is supposed to be a
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Creasey John, farmer
Kitchen William, farmer
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Wilcox Henry, market gardener, zz Albion street
Wiles Charles Timothy, manager of Capital & Counties
Bank Limited & insanrance agent Norwich & London
Fire & Life & Hailstorm Accident, Market place
Wilkinson Joseph, wholesale & retail ironmonger, cycle
agent & repairer & agricultural implement agent &
maker, 5 Bridge street; office on tuesday at Market
place ; workshops, Vine street; agricultural implement
yard, Sheep market, Holbeach market, thursday
Willcox Alfred T. butcher, 25 Hall place
Willders & Son, solicitors (attend on tues.), 19 Bridge st
Williamson Herbert James, shopkeeper, 16 Spring st
Williamson Robert, baker, 72 Double street
Wilson William Limited, cycle agents & dlrs. 6 Bridge st
Wimhuret Harry R. manager of the Urban District
gas works, Albion street
Wingfield Joseph John, boot maker, 1 Westlode street
Wiseman John Joseph, hawker, Silverdale,S3t.Thomas’rd
Wombwell Main Colliery Co. Limited (William Newton,
agent), Station yard
Woodroof John, superintendent of the South Holland
drainage, 23 Albert street
Woeods William, horse dealer, 6 Albion street
‘Woodthorpe David, tailor, 2 Westbourne terrace
Woolley C. P. & Son, joiners, Church street
Woolley James, farmer, Spalding common
Workman’s Institute (Charles Crust, sec.), Holbeach rd
Wright Ann (Mrs.), Oak Sheaf inn, Little London
Wright James Storey, plumber, 24 Albert street
Wright Jason, draper & basket maker, 15 Double street
Wright Joseph Randall, ironmongers, 1 Church gate
Wright Wm.civil engr.to G.N.&G.E.Rly.16 Pinchbeck rd

of the Hon. Mrs. Needham and Mrs. Barnett, and Leld
since 1880 by the Rev. Richard Henry Mann B.A. of
Emmanuel College, Cambridge, who resides at Swaton.'
William Alfred Cragg esq. of Threekingham House,
Threekingham, who is lord of the manor, and George
Smith esq. of Horbling, are the principal landowners.
The soil is chiefly clay; subsoil, clay. The chief crops
ars wheat, barley and oats. The area is 1,019 acres;
rateable value, £988; the population in 1gor was 88.

Letters through Folkingham, Lincs. arrive at ¢ a.m.
Wall Letter Box cleared 4.30 p.m. week days only.
The nearest money order & telegraph office is at
Osbournby, about 1 mile distant

The children of this place attend the school at Osbournby

Wilkinson William, farmer
Wright Walter, farmer

fragment : the church contains a very interesting series
of monuments commemorating several of the most dis-
tinguished members of the house of Willoughby including :
1. An altar-tomb of stone, adorned with shafts originally
supporting a canopy; on the upper slab lie the effigies
of John, 2nd Baron Willoughby de Eresby, and Joan
(Roseline), his wife; the figure of the former is in armour
with shield and sword, and has the legs crossed; the lady
wears a coverchief and a flowing mantle over a close fitting
dress ; Lord Willoughby was knighted in 1326-7, and took
part in the Scottish and Flemish wars, including the relief
of Aiguillon, 1345-6 and the battle of Crecy, August 26Eh,
1346; he died in 1349: 2. A fine altar-tomb of stone and
supporting a finely carved alabaster effigy in full armour of
Johmn, 3rd Baron Willoughby de Eresby, the head resting on
a mantled helmet and the feet on an animal, and around
the cornice of the upper slab are little figures of monks
holding scrolls,staves and rosaries; this baron is mentioned
by Froissart as one of the most distinguished knights of
his time ; he fought most valiantly at Poictiers, September
1gth, 1356; took part in the subsequent invasion of France
by Edward III. and the Black Prince, and died in 1372: 3.
An altar-tomb of alabaster; on the coped slab above are
recumbent effigies of Robert, 4th Baron Willoughby de
Eresby, ob. 1396, and his 3rd wife, Elizabeth, danghter
and heiress of Lord Latimer, and widow of Lord Nevill, of
Raby; the figure of the baron is in full armour, with the
head resting on a helmet surmounted by the Willoughby
crest, and the feet on a lion; that of the lady is very
richly habited, the head resting on two cushions sup-
ported by figures of monks, and at the feet three pet
dogs: 4. A brass, with effigy, to Margaret, daughter of
‘William, Lord Zouch, and 2nd wife of Robert, 4th Baron
Willoughby de Eresby; around the figure are eighd
shields of arms, and the whole is inclosed by a marginal
inscription, which gives the date of her death as October
18th, 1391: 5. A remarkable fine triple canopied brass
with effigies of William, sth baron Willoughby de Eresby,
ob. 1410, and Lucy, daughter of Lord Strange,of Knockyn,
his first wife; the figure of the baron is in rich armour,



